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The dwelling at Weston is best described as a rambling country 
house that began as a simple, one-and-one-half-story, early- 
nineteenth-century log house. With additions made in 1860, 1870, 
and 1893, the house evolved into an L-shaped dwelling with 
decorative motifs primarily inspired by the Carpenter Gothic style 
of architecture. The farm is also noted for its rare collection of 
ten nineteenth-century domestic and agricultural outbuildings. 

A R C R I T E C T m L  ANALYSIS 

The original one-over-one-room log structure currently comprises 
the central section of the house and, based on the presence of cut 
nails and a Federal-style mantel, probably dates to around 1810. 
The log walls of the original .house are now covered with 
weatherboards on the exterior; however, they remain exposed on the 
interior. 

Judging by whitewash stains and nail holes on the exposed ceiling 
joists, the ceiling of the first-floor room was originally lathed 
and plastered. This room also features wide, random-width, heart- 
pine floor boards secured by cut nails, late-19th-century 
matchboard wainscoting and simple chair rail, and a Federal-style 
mantel consisting of a simple shelf, a plain frieze, no pilasters, 
and architrave trim surrounding the firebox. Evidence of a 
northwest corner stair can be seen in the patched floor boards and 
"ghosttv or trzce of the stair stringer against the north wall. 
Original window frames with beaded sills now contain late-19th- 
century two-over-two double-sash windows. The room in the half 
Story of the original log structure contains a Greek Revival-style 
mantel, wide floor boards, a front gable dormer with a two-over- 
two-sash window that was added in the late 19th century, and a rear 
shed dormer with a casement window that probably was added in the 
early 20th century. 

The second phase of construction occurred in 1860 when a one-and- 
one-half-story frame and weatherboard addition was built to the 
northeast. creating a fashionable central-passage-plan dwelling, 
the catslide-roofed addition consists of a stairhall and throe 
rooms on the first floor and a stairhall and a bedroom in the half 
story above. The original one-room log structure became the 
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southeast corner room of the central-passage double-pile house. 
Two exterior end stone chimneys with upper brick stacks are seen at 
the northeast gable of the addition. The larger of the two 
chimneys is inscribed with the date It186Oot. A five-bay porch with 
chamfered wooden posts extending across the front may have been 
added at that time as well as a central front gable containing a 
six-over-six double-sash window. 

The front entrance is flanked by three-light sidelights and leads 
into a central passage containing a stair that rises from the rear 
of the passage. The stair features a turned newel, a rounded 
handrail, two square balusters per tread, and a decoratively sawn 
stringer that is similar to the bargeboard and eaves trim on the 
exterior. Interior woodwork throughout the 1 8 6 0  addition is 
simple; architrave window and d.~or trim, beaded window sills, four- 
panel doors with small metal box locks, and a Greek Revival-style 
wooden mantel in the first-floor northeast room. A mantel in the 
first-floor northwest room was replaced in the late twentieth 
century. Windows at the front are two-over-two double-sash 
replacements, while six-over-six double-sash rear windows appear to 
be original. 

In 1 8 7 0  a one-and-one-half-story frame and weatherboard rear ell 
was constructed to the southwest, attached to the southwest corner 
of the 1 8 6 0  addition. It consists of a kitchen, storage room, and 
passage on the first floor with an enlcosed stair leading to two 
bedrooms and a small passage in the half story above. The gable- 
roofed addition features a decoratively sawn bargeboard and eaves 
trim, four-over-four double-sash windows with triangular w-indow 
heads, and game dormers. Interior woodwork includes four-panel 
doors with steeple-top hinges, symmetrically molded trim with 
bull's-eye corner blocks, and uniform-width floor boards. 

In 1893  the dwelling was enlarged once again by the construction of 
a two-story frame and weatherboard addition to the south. 
Consisting of a dining room on the first floor with a bedroom, 
sitting room, bathroom, and passage on the second floor, the 1893 
addition resulted in the L shape of the present house. It features 
a steeply-pitched gable roof with gable dormers and decoratively 
sawn bargeboards and eaves trim--common characteristics of the 
Carpenter Gothic style. The addition's two-story mass, attached to 
the earlier one-and-one-half-story main section of'the house, as 
well as its fenestration pattern creates an asymmetrical 
composition typical of late-nineteenth-century architecture. 
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Also typical of the period is the addition's interior woodwork-- 
four-panel doors with reeded trim and two-light transoms above, a 
stair with turned balusters and newel posts, and a dining room 
mantel that has a simple shelf supported by what appear to be 
halved turned newel posts. 

Weston is especially noted for its fine collection of nineteenth- 
century outbuildings. They include eight contributing buildings 
and two contributing structures. Immediately south of the dwelling 
is a detached mid-nineteenth-century kitchenlwash house. It is a 
gable-roofed log and weatherboard building consisting of a one-and- 
one-half-story section (kitchen) to the north and a single-story 
section (wash house?) to the south with a corbel-capped brick 
chimney between both sectitjns. 

The mid-nineteenth-century smokehouse, located west of the kitchen, 
consists of two sections; the northern section is Of log 
construction, while the southern section is of wood-frame 
construction. Both sections have board-and-batten exterior 
cladding and fieldstone foundations. The building features a 
gabled projection that extends well beyond a batten-door entrance 
and is supported by wooden posts. A louvered cupola is perched on 
the building's wooden-shingle gable roof. 

Immediately southwest of the smokehouse is a nineteenth-century 
board-and-batten springhouse with a wooden-shingle gable roof 
surmounted by a large hip-roofed louvered wooden cupola. 

A frame with board-and-batten tool house with a stone foundation 
and a standing-seam metai gable roof is located west of the 
springhouse. Nearby is a wellhouse, a contributing structure 
consisting of a wooden-shingle gable roof supported by six cedar 
posts. 

A late-nineteenth-century board-and-batten blacksmith shop is 
located northwest of the tool house. It has a corrugated metal 
gable roof with wide overhanging eaves and an interior end brick 
chimney with a stone exterior stack. 

Southwest of the blacksmith shop is a late-nineteenth- or early- 
twentieth-century frame corncrib with vertical board and horizontal 
slat sheathing. This contributing structure has a central driva- 
through, a wooden-shingle gable roof, and a brick pier foundation. 



Unlted Stater Depumrmnt ot thr intarlor 
Natlonal Park Sennca 

Natlonal Register of Historic Placss 
Contlnuatlon Sheet ;L 

Wes ton  
F a u q u i e r  County, V A  

South and southeast of the corncrib and across the drive leading to 
the house is a complex of farm buildings consisting of a late- 
nineteenth-century stable, late-nineteenth-century hay barn, and 
mid-nineteenth-century barn. All are frame and board-and-batten 
buildings with wooden-shingle gable roofs. 

The only noncontributing building on the property is a one-story, 
concrete-block kennel with a composition-shingle gable roof. 
Constructed in 1975 for the specific purpose of housing the 
Casanova Hunt hounds, the kennel is located southeast of the 
dwelling and is screened from the complex of historic buildings by 
plantings. 



Unlted Strtor Daputmrnt ot thr interlor 
Natlonal Park Serwco 

Natlonal Register of Historic Placss 
Contlnuatlon Sheet C 

&k 

hreston 

Sectlon number Page 5 
F a u q u i e r  County, V A  

Weston, a farm located near Casanova, Fauquier County, Virginia, 
was the seat of the Fitzhugh and Nourse families. The rambling 
frame and log building on the property began as a simple log house 
that was probably constructed for Thomas Fitzhugh around 18 10. 
Purchased from the heirs of Giles Fitzhugh by Charles Joseph Nourse 
in 1859, the house was enlarged by Nourse in 1860, 1870, and 1893. 
The resulting L-shaped building is architecturally significant as 
a farmhouse that evolved over the nineteenth century from a 
vernacular log dwelling to a late Victorian composition influenced 
by the Carpenter Gothic style of architecture. A rare survival is 

-. the property's fine collection of ten domestic and agricultural 
outbuildings, raking Weston one of Fauquier County's most 
completely prese~ved nineteenth-century farmsteads. Teli acres of 
the farm, including the house and outbuildings, were donated by 
Charlotte Nourse to the Warrenton ~ntiquarian Society in 1959. 
Currently the society operates Weston as a house and farm museum. 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

Local tradition states that the first known structure at Weston, 
the log cabin that comprises the nucleus of the present dwelling, 
was built for Thomas Fitzhugh as early as 1753. The cabin, 
however, contains no architectural evidence to suggest a date of 
construction any earlier than about 1810. As for Fitzhugh family 
ownership of the land, according to county deed books, Thomas 
Fitzhugh did not acquire land on Cedar Run, a stream in the 
vicinity of Weston, until 1788. No earlier record survives of 
Fitzhugh 1andli.1 the vicinity of Cedar Run. At Thomas Fitztiugh's 
death in 1843, his land holdings were divided and 484 acres on 
Turkey Run, a tributary of Cedar Run, were alotted to Giles 
Fitzhugh. 

The property on Turkey Run was acquired in 1859 by Charles Joseph 
Nourse from the heirs of Giles Fitzhugh, who had died in 1852. 
Besides the house, two outbuildings were mentioned in the deed, 
presumably tne extant kitchen and smokehouse. Charles Nourse, who 
was reared at The Highlands in Georgetown, D.C. (currently Sidwell 
Friends School), gave the property its present name--Weston--to 
commemorate Weston Hall, his ancestral manor house located in 
Herefordshire, England. For three years the farm was managed by an 
overseer, but in April 1862, Nourse, his wife Margaret, and infant 
son traveled from Georgetown through Union military lines to take 
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up residence at Weston. The diary of Margaret Nourse, published in 
1983 by the Virginia Historical Society, documents family life at 
Weston for seven months until November, 1862, when the family moved 
to Pennsylvania. Nourse returned to Weston in 1885 with his second 
wife, Annie Carroll Simpson. They produced a family of four 
children before his death in 1906. At that time the farm was left 
to the management of Noursers widow. 

During the century of Nourse family ownership from 1859 to 1959 the 
property served a number of specific needs. The farm operation was 
actively maintained during the lifetime of Charles Nourse and 
afterwards by his widow, Annie . She supplemented the farm income 
by operating a school at Weston for boarders and day students as 
well as a summer camp for girls in the early 1920s. During World 
War I1 Constance and Charlotte Nourse, daughters of Charles and 
Annie, opened Weston as a hospitality center for military 
servicemen on duty in the Washington, D.C. area. By the end of the 
war they had served about 11,000 meals to more than 1,600 guests at 
no charge. In appreciation the guests helped to maintain and 
repair the house and farm buildings. 

In 1959 Charlotte Nourse willed the house, outbuildings, and ten 
acres of land to the Warrenton Antiquarian Society which has 
maintained Weston as a house and farm museum to the present date. 
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATq 

Verbal Boundary Description 

The boundaries of the property known as Weston are described in 
Fauquier County Deed Book 211, p. 84 as I1all of that certain 
tract ... being situate near Casanova, in Cedar Run Magisterial 
District, Fauquier County, Virginia, containing ten (10) acres 
according to plot and survey of J. I. Covell." 

Boundary Justification 

The boundaries of Weston include the ten acres of land, containing 
- the main house and outbuildings, that were donated by Charlotte 

Nourse in 1959 to the Warrenton Antiquarian Society to be preserved 
as a museum. 
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PHOTOGRAPHS 

The following information is common to each of the accompanying 
photographs: 

NAME: Weston 
LOCATION: Fauquier County, Virginia 
PHOTOGRAPHER: Richard 0. Anderson 
DATE OF PHOTOGRAPH: March 1990 
NEGATIVE LOCATION: Warrenton Antiquarian Society 

Main House and ~itchen/Wash House 
View looking north -. Photo 1 of 8 

Corncrib, Blacksmith Shop, Tool House, and Wellhouse 
View looking northwest 
Photo 2 of 8 

Kitchen/Wash House 
View looking southwest 
Photo 3 of 8 

Interior of Kitchen/Wash House 
View looking south in kitchen 
Photo 4 of 8 

Smokehouse 
View looking west 
Photo 5 of 8 

First-Floor Room in Original Log Section 
View looking northeast 
Photo 6 of 8 

Second-Floor Room in Original Log Section 
View looking southwest 
Photo 7 of 8 

First-Floor Northwest Room in 1860 Addition 
View looking northeast 
Photo 8 of 8 
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